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Major Brian Thayer, Deputy Counterdrug Coordinator, Nevada National Guard 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will open the Subcommittee meeting with a staff report on the Tahoe 
Regional Planning Agency (TRPA). 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
DCNR - Tahoe Regional Planning Agency – Budget Page DCNR-15  
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4204 
 
SARAH COFFMAN (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The Governor recommends reducing Nevada's contributions to the TRPA from a 
one-third to two-third split with California, to approximately a one-quarter to 
three-quarter split resulting in a savings of $556,608 in each year of the 
biennium. The states are not required to approve funding in accordance with the 
split; however, historically Nevada has approved its one-third contribution. If the 
Legislature decides to fund the full one-third portion of the split, approximately 
$728,093 would be required in each year of the biennium. The Budget Office 
has submitted Budget Amendment 54 which restores $171,485 each year from 
the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Pollution Control account eliminated in 
decision unit E-250 of the Executive Budget. 
 
E-250 Working Environment and Wage – Page DCNR-16 
 
The Subcommittee would need to approve an additional $556,608 to restore 
Nevada's full one-third share. The TRPA has provided a priority list of the items 
they would like to restore if funding is available: a senior planning position; air 
quality threshold monitoring; Information Technology (IT) system maintenance; 
employee training; and a records management position. The Subcommittee 
needs $520,757 to approve all of these items.  
 
There are several options for the Subcommittee to consider. The first option is 
to approve the Governor's recommendation to reduce the State's apportioned 
share. The second option is to increase General Fund appropriations by 
$520,757 each year to fund the five priorities the TRPA has indicated. The third 
option is to increase the DMV Pollution Control funds by $256,640 each year in 
lieu of General Fund appropriations to support air quality threshold monitoring. 
The fourth option is a hybrid of options two and three: support General Fund 
appropriations of $264,117 each year to fund four of the TRPA's priorities, and 
increase the DMV Pollution Control funds for the air quality threshold 
monitoring. 
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CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
To clarify the purpose of this Subcommittee meeting, we are reviewing old 
information and evaluating new information. We are not closing budgets today. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I do not support this reduction. We are good neighbors with California. They are 
in a worse, or at least comparable, financial position than we are. We have a 
compact. If the State of Nevada shorts its contribution how can we expect 
California to maintain its share of the compact? 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I agree. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN KOIVISTO: 
Is there any funding in the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act of 2009 (ARRA) for Lake Tahoe? 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
The TRPA has submitted some requests for the ARRA. I do not know what the 
specific projects and amounts are. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
If California's financial situation is as serious as ours, they might cut their 
funding as well. We are nickel-and-diming this budget to death. By the time we 
add back $500,000, multiplied by 87 times, we will be back where we started. 
I support Option 3 at this time and wait to find out what California will do. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I agree. What does the rest of the Subcommittee think is best? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
I agree with the Chair, but I also agree with Senator Coffin: I do not want 
Nevada to reduce its share. I am intrigued by the ARRA opportunity; I had not 
heard about it previously. Has the TRPA applied for the share of the ARRA 
allocated to Nevada? Or is it a national competition? 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
I believe it is a national competition. The agency is here today. They are better 
able to answer that question. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Can someone from the TRPA answer that question? 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
What do you know about California's budget and the appropriations they have 
made for the TRPA? 
 
JERRY WELLS (Deputy Executive Director, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency): 
The TRPA has submitted several requests for ARRA funding, but not for agency 
operations. I am not aware of anything in the ARRA that provides funding for 
general operations. Most of the funding is for Environmental Improvement 
Projects, research studies and other specific projects. Typically, it is one-time 
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funding as well. We do not expect those funds to solve the proportional split. 
Those funds would be helpful for some needed projects at Lake Tahoe. 
 
California has approved the budget for fiscal year (FY) 2009-2010 as part of an 
18-month budget to reconcile the current fiscal year. The TRPA received no 
cuts. They matched the four percent cost-of-living adjustment the Nevada State 
employees received in the current year. Other than that, they maintained the 
baseline budget. The TRPA will make its budget request for FY 2010-2011 in 
September 2009. California is on an annual budget cycle. California funds its 
share of the TRPA budget from its environmental license plate fund. There is a 
high probability the TRPA will continue to receive base funding from California. 
We will not seek any enhancements. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
With that in mind, I reluctantly support Option 3. We cannot keep adding money 
back to the budget. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
Supporting Option 3 will not bring us to the traditional one-third apportionment. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Perhaps we could say we support Option 3 with the caveat that we will seek 
additional money to restore the one-third funding. 
 
We will now discuss the State Parks. 
 
DCNR - State Parks – Budget Page DCNR-63 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4162 
 
JEFFREY A. FERGUSON (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative 

Counsel Bureau): 
The Governor has made a number of recommendations in the Division of State 
Parks (DSP) which, when taken together, reduce the number of park regions 
from four to two, and include the following: the elimination of 13 positions; the 
closure of three park facilities; the partial closure of 11 park facilities; and the 
elimination of 13 months of seasonal salaries. Six of the thirteen positions 
eliminated stem from the reductions of the park regions from four to two. The 
DSP has indicated they support the recommendation: they believe they can 
function with only two regions and those six positions are not being considered 
for a potential add-back. Two more positions were for the Valley of Fire State 
Park wedding program which was not implemented. Two positions at 
Washoe Lake will not affect operations at the lake and are not asked to be 
reconsidered. There are three positions the DSP would like to add back to their 
budget: a park ranger technician III at Buckland Station; a park interpreter II at 
the Regional Visitor's Center in Panaca; and a commissioned state park 
supervisor at Echo Canyon. 
 
There are four options for consideration by the Subcommittee. The first is to 
approve the Governor's recommendation to eliminate all 13 positions which 
would provide General Fund savings of $740,626 in FY 2009-2010 and 
$745,931 in FY 2010-2011. The second option is to restore the park 
interpreter II at the Regional Visitor's Center in Panaca at a cost of $58,513 in 
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FY 2009-2010 and $59,032 in FY 2010-2011. The DSP has indicated this is 
their number one priority budget add-back. Restoration of this position would 
allow the visitor's center to remain open year-round and retain a long-time, 
incumbent employee. This is the only visitor's center in Lincoln County. The 
Lincoln County Commission and Chamber of Commerce have expressed concern 
about the loss of the information site and the full-time position. The third option 
is to restore the commissioned park supervisor I at Echo Canyon State Park at a 
cost of $90,648 in FY 2009-2010 and $91,107 in FY 2010-2011. This would 
allow Echo Canyon to operate year-round, maintain its supervisor and operate 
independently of Spring Valley Park. The DSP indicated the loss of this position 
would place significant pressure on its remaining staff and reduce its ability to 
provide customer service and emergency response. Lincoln County has 
expressed concern regarding the loss of this position as well. The fourth option 
is the restoration of the park ranger technician III at Fort Churchill State Historic 
Park, Buckland Station, at a cost of $44,029 in FY 2001-2010 and $44,546 in 
FY 2010-2011. Restoration of this position would allow the DSP to open and 
operate the Buckland Station, which is an historic site that has been fully 
renovated and furnished with period pieces. The facility is located along the 
historic California Trail and offers a unique opportunity to interpret the early 
history of Nevada. This facility has not been open to the public due to staffing 
concerns. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
Buckland Station is right on the highway. I have seen people stopped and 
digging around in the area. Is there adequate security at the site? 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Can someone from the DSP respond? 
 
DAVID K. MORROW (Administrator, Division of State Parks, Department of 

Conservation and Natural Resources): 
The loss of the position at Buckland Station impacts our ability to open the 
facility to the public and conduct interpretive tours. There is one employee with 
commissioned responsibilities to check on the facility. There is also a security 
system built into the project. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
We have difficult choices today. Nevada has so little in terms of State Parks. If 
we close this to the public, what will tourists see? There are so few places to 
stop in rural Nevada. Our investment in State Parks and long-term staff is 
important. I support adding back positions. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I agree with Assemblywoman Leslie. In addition to keeping the facilities open to 
the public, we cannot let them sit and fall into disrepair. That creates problems 
for the next Legislative Session. I support restoring these three positions. Why 
is Panaca the number one priority? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
I was asked to discuss with the communities in which the closures were 
recommended what the impacts would be. In that process, it became clear the 
loss of the Visitor's Center in Panaca would have a significant impact on the 
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community. The Center provides information on the five State Parks in that area 
as well as tourist information to anyone going through Lincoln County. Of all the 
entities I spoke to, the Lincoln County Commission and Chamber of Commerce 
voiced the greatest concern. The interpreter position provides educational and 
contact opportunities. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Is Panaca the County seat? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
The County seat is in Pioche.  
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Is the Chamber of Commerce located in Panaca? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
The Chamber of Commerce represents all of Lincoln County. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Echo Canyon State Park is not far from Panaca. Could you use one position to 
operate both locations? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
They are not far apart. That is why we made the recommendation in the first 
place. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I do not want them to be ignored either. I support adding all three positions 
back to the budget. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I do as well. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN HOGAN: 
In the broad picture, the ability to keep our public, particularly our young people, 
in touch with our history and traditions is important. We are likely to make cuts 
in the budgets for museums and there will be fewer days available for school 
groups. This is a relatively small price to pay to avoid collapsing the structure of 
cultural and historical knowledge in the State. I agree we should restore at least 
these three positions to preserve as much as we can of our traditions. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
The two positions recommended for the Valley of Fire in Clark County were 
associated with the wedding program which would have financed them. They 
were approved by the Legislature but were not implemented because a fee 
increase, which was not supported by the Governor, was required. Did the 
Governor veto the bill? 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Yes. 
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SENATOR COFFIN: 
I would like to put that back. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
What does the Subcommittee think? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN KOIVISTO: 
Last fall, my granddaughter was married at Red Rock Canyon. There were 
people lined up from morning until dark both Saturday and Sunday. Eliminating 
the program would be foolish. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
It made great sense when we first heard about it last session. Does it still make 
sense? What would it take to implant the program? 
 
ALLEN BIAGGI (Director, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources): 
You may recall from the last session, weddings were overwhelming the staff at 
the Valley of Fire. A recommendation to increase the fees was supported by the 
Legislature. Governor Gibbons did not support the increase in fees and the 
revenues did not materialize. The program was scaled back to status quo. We 
still conduct weddings there, but the demand is much higher than we can 
handle. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
Will you provide information about how fees could be raised and what it would 
take to implement the program to the Subcommittee for consideration when we 
close the budget? If we could make some money and keep the Parks open we 
should consider this option.  
 
MR. BIAGGI: 
We would be pleased to provide that information. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will expect it. Give it to our staff. 
 
MR. BIAGGI: 
I would like to clarify one issue. Mr. Ferguson stated in his opening remarks the 
DSP is closing three parks; two parks are being closed for non-budget reasons. 
Walker Lake will be closed because, due to declining water levels, the boat 
ramp is out of the water. The Elgin Schoolhouse in Lincoln County will be closed 
because the access road was washed out in a flood. 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
Staff indicated three parks would be closed because Buckland Station would not 
open. If that position is restored, that park will open. 
 
The Governor recommends the partial closure of 11 facilities: the Old Las Vegas 
Mormon Fort; Washoe Lake State Park; Dayton State Park; Ward Charcoal 
Ovens; Beaver Dam State Park; Dangberg Home Ranch; Lahontan State Park; 
the Sand Harbor boat ramp at Lake Tahoe State Park; and the Rye Patch State 
Recreation Area. Three of these facilities were discussed previously as their 
partial closure would be due to position eliminations. A fourth facility, the Old 
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Las Vegas Mormon Fort, would be partially closed due to the elimination of 
funding for seasonal workers. 
 
During the budget hearing, the Subcommittee asked the DSP if it could reduce 
any of its recommended new or replacement equipment to provide General 
Funds of $6,736 over the biennium to keep the seven park facilities 
recommended for partial closure in decision units E-662 through E-668 
operating year-round. In response, the Division indicated it has learned of 
additional Marina Development Gas Tax and Excess Property sales revenues of 
approximately $9,000 that could be used to purchase the new small tractor and 
snow blower recommended for Wildhorse in decision unit E-720. The DSP has 
submitted a work program for the April 20, 2009, Interim Finance 
Committee (IFC) meeting seeking to increase revenue authority to accept these 
additional funds and use them to purchase this equipment. If this work program 
is approved, the agency could reduce the General Fund appropriations in E-720, 
and use those funds to restore decision units E-662 through E-668, thereby 
keeping seven park facilities open year-round: Dayton; Ward Charcoal Ovens; 
Beaver Dam; Dangberg Ranch; Lahontan; Sand Harbor boat ramp; and 
Rye Patch. 
 
E-662 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-73 
 
E-663 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-74 
 
E-664 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-74 
 
E-665 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-75 
 
E-666 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-75 
 
E-667 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-75 
 
E-668 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-76 
 
E-720 New Equipment – Page DCNR-79 
 
The Regional Visitor's Center in Panaca, Echo Canyon State Park, and 
Buckland Station would be able to operate year-round if the three associated 
positions previously mentioned are restored. The DSP indicates it supports the 
temporary closure of the Elgin Schoolhouse due to the poor condition of the 
access road, as well as the temporary closure of the Walker Lake boat ramp due 
to low water conditions. The agency supports the partial closure of portions of 
Washoe Lake because the facilities receive little visitation during the planned 
closed months. However, the restoration of the seasonal workforce at the 
Old Las Vegas Mormon Fort is one of the top five budget add-backs suggested 
by the DSP. 
 
There are three options for consideration regarding park facility closures. The 
first is to approve the Governor's recommendation to close and partially close 
the 11 facilities identified for a General Fund savings of $148,465 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $148,973 in FY 2010-2011. The second option is to restore 
General Funds of $3,368 in each year of the biennium to keep the seven parks 
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discussed earlier open year-round. This option assumes IFC approval of the 
pending work program to accept additional funds. The third option is the 
restoration of the seasonal workforce at the Old Las Vegas Mormon Fort. That 
would require an additional General Fund appropriation of $53,949 each year of 
the biennium. Without the seasonal workforce, the DSP is concerned it may be 
unable to complete the necessary park maintenance and conduct requested 
interpretive tours.  
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
In my years with the Clark County School District, there were many field trips 
during the school day to that site. That was a popular trip, especially after the 
Las Vegas Natural History Museum was opened; the students were able to visit 
both sites. What kind of experience do you continue to have with school 
groups? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
We have a number of school tours at the Old Las Vegas Mormon Fort. There 
has been a decline due to budget issues within the school districts, especially 
with regard to transportation. 
 
MR. BIAGGI: 
While we have seen declines, it is an urban State park and it is easier for 
students to get to that park than to other venues throughout the Clark County 
area. It provides a valuable service to the area. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
We have to restore $3,368 to keep seven parks open. That is a done deal. How 
close is the Elgin Schoolhouse to one of our Conservation Camps? Could the 
inmates be used to fix the road? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
The Pioche Conservation Camp is near that site. We have spoken to the Nevada 
Division of Forestry (NDF), and they have agreed to assist with the surveillance 
and maintenance required. 
 
MR. BIAGGI: 
It is a State road. The Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) would have 
to be involved and the road would have to be upgraded and maintained to State 
standards. I do not know if the Conservation crews would have the expertise or 
the ability to bring it up to that standard. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Is that a shovel-ready project? 
 
MR. BIAGGI: 
Building this road is not a project we could handle on our own. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I support Options 2 and 3: restoring funding for the seven parks; and keeping 
the Old Las Vegas Mormon Fort open. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
I agree. I would like to point out to anyone who may be listening on the 
Internet, we go over the budget letter-by-letter, inch-by-inch. It is ridiculous to 
think of closing seven parks for $3,368 a year. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
The closure of the Elgin Schoolhouse is considered safe by the DSP because the 
road closure means people will not be able to get near it to vandalize it. In 
essence, if the road could be fixed, it could be opened. The Legislature accepted 
grants and gifts from the Foley and Bradshaw families in the 2007 Session to 
restore the Elgin Schoolhouse. We do not provide good faith to citizens who 
help us to restore or maintain our facilities if we just abandon them. It does not 
make sense to me. I think the Elgin Schoolhouse situation must be addressed in 
this action. The families put $200,000 into this facility last Session. 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
I believe there is a surveillance and alarm system currently in place at the 
Elgin Schoolhouse. The DSP travels to the facility periodically to check on it and 
to perform routine ground maintenance. The average person could not drive to 
the site and take a tour. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Is there a fence around the site? 
 
MR. MORROW: 
There is a decorative fence around it. In response to your earlier question, there 
has been an investment of around $200,000 over the last several years. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
We could lose that easily. If you consider the cost of cleaning up graffiti and 
repairing old, broken windows, there will be no savings. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
It appears we have strong support for Options 2 and 3, and possibly the 
restoration of the Elgin Schoolhouse. Let us now discuss the seasonal salaries. 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
The Governor's Budget recommends the elimination of thirteen months of 
seasonal salary costs from three State park facilities: six months at the 
Mormon Station in Genoa; five months at Kershaw-Ryan; and two months at 
Sand Harbor in Lake Tahoe. The DSP has indicated restoration of this seasonal 
funding would provide better services to visitors. At the Mormon Station, 
restoration of six seasonal months would allow the museum to be open seven 
days a week instead of five and provide for park maintenance such as lawn 
mowing and irrigation. At Kershaw-Ryan, restoration of five seasonal months 
would provide assistance to the two existing Park Rangers managing the fifteen 
new campsites recently added to the park. At Sand Harbor, restoration of two 
seasonal months would allow the DSP to extend the hours of the boat ramp and 
to provide assistance with the Invasive Species Inspection program established 
by the TRPA. There are two options for consideration by the Subcommittee: the 
first is to approve the Governor's recommendation to eliminate these 
13 seasonal months at a savings of $36,400 in each year of the biennium; the 
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second is to restore these 13 seasonal months at a cost of $36,400 in each 
year of the biennium. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
I support restoring this funding. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will now discuss the Forestry Conservation Camps. 
 
DCNR - Forestry Conservation Camps – Budget Page DCNR-40 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4198 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
The Governor recommends eliminating seven positions and associated operating 
costs supporting six conservation crews from the Forestry Conservation Camps 
budget due to the proposed closure of the Tonopah Conservation Camp (TCC) 
by the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDOC) effective July 1, 2009. This 
recommendation provides General Fund savings of $318,147 in FY 2009-2010 
and $360,343 in FY2010-2011. This camp has historically served central 
Nevada in both wildland firefighting efforts and in providing services to central 
Nevada communities and State agencies. The agency testified during the budget 
hearing that loss of this camp and its associated fire crews could result in more 
and larger fires in central Nevada which could ultimately result in higher costs 
for fire suppression. In addition, a number of local communities testified the loss 
of the conservation crews would affect their communities. For example, the 
Round Mountain Town Manager testified the TCC crews saved the town 
$165,000 on a single project in 2008. Since the budget hearing, the town of 
Tonopah has indicated they save approximately $200,000 annually using the 
TCC crews, and both Nye and Esmeralda Counties each indicated they save 
approximately $100,000 a year. Further, the agency submitted information 
indicating that the NDOT saved $235,000 in 2006 by utilizing the 
TCC conservation crews to complete a 16-mile long fencing project. This 
decision module, E-662, eliminates the six conservation crews under the 
purview of the DSP, while closure of the TCC is recommended in the NDOC 
budget.  
 
E-662 Program Reductions/Reductions to Services – Page DCNR-44 
 
This Subcommittee has indicated its support for keeping the TCC open in the 
Corrections budget. Additionally, the Subcommittee supports delaying the 
opening of the Three Lakes Valley Conservation Camp (TLVCC). Delaying the 
TLVCC would provide General Fund savings of $492,630 in FY 2009-2010 and 
$982,180 in FY 2010-2011. The question for the Subcommittee is whether to 
restore funding to keep the TCC open at a General Fund cost of $318,147 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $360,343 in FY 2010-2011. The six conservation crews at 
the TCC cannot be restored unless funding to operate the TCC is also restored 
in the NDOC Tonopah Conservation Camp budget. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
That would be the right thing to do. We are not going to close the TCC, and we 
are postponing the TLVCC until 2017. There will be a number of changes in the 
NDOC budget to benefit Tonopah as well as the rest of the State. 
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CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Thank you to all of you who responded and provided the Subcommittee the 
additional information indicating how the TCC saves money in your budgets: 
both local and State governments. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
I want to thank the citizens from Tonopah for your participation and your 
patience with us as we work through the budget process. The Legislature 
listens to its citizens. You did a great job justifying why this was needed, and I 
am happy to support it. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
I believe as we move ahead with the TCC in place we will see additional federal 
stimulus projects pertaining to forest thinning and biomass treatment in eastern 
Nevada. There will be additional revenues coming out of the TCC because of 
that. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will now discuss the Department of Water Resources. 
 
DCNR - Water Resources – Budget Page DCNR-82 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4171 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
The Governor recommends eliminating 11.4 positions from the Nevada Division 
of Water Resources (NDWR) for a General Fund savings of $630,844 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $636,654 in FY 2010-2011. 
 
The Subcommittee should note that the 2005 Legislature approved the addition 
of 11 new positions for this budget: 9 engineering-related positions; 
1 information systems manager; and 1 administrative assistant II. These 
positions were added to reduce the backlog of water rights applications and 
reports of conveyance; to conduct field investigations supporting the 
adjudication process; and to create a Website where the public and agency staff 
would have access to water right documentation and the agency's databases. 
The Subcommittee asked the NDWR to provide a prioritized list of positions it 
believes would be the most beneficial to restore if funding becomes available 
during the 2009 Legislative Session. 
 
There are eight options for the Subcommittee to consider. The first option is to 
approve the Governor's recommendation to eliminate all 11.4 positions. The 
second option is to restore funding for the engineering technician III in the 
Division's Title Section in Carson City at a cost of $46,692 in FY 2009-2010 
and $47,171 in FY 2010-2011. Restoration of this position is the agency's 
number one priority budget add-back. This position would continue to reduce 
the backlog of Reports of Conveyance filed, allowing engineers to focus on 
processing water rights applications for the State Engineer's final decision. The 
third option is to restore funding for the professional engineer in the Water 
Planning Section in Carson City at a cost of $81,120 in FY 2009-2010 and 
$81,583 in FY 2010-2011. This is the agency's number two priority. The 
responsibilities of this position include reviewing and providing technical 
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assistance to large and small water purveyors in the preparation of water 
conservation plans; providing technical assistance; reviewing grant applications 
and letters of intent for the Board for Financing Water Projects; and 
documenting annual estimates of water pumpage. The fourth option is to 
restore funding for a staff associate engineer in the Water Rights Section in 
Carson City at a cost of $64,003 in FY 2009-2010 and $64,485 in 
FY 2010-2011. This is the agency's number three priority. This position would 
help reduce the backlog of water rights applications, assist in the timely 
preparation of reports on pumpage and crop inventories, and assist the general 
public. The fifth option is to restore funding for an engineering technician III in 
the Title Section in Carson City at a cost of $46,692 in FY 2009-2010 and 
$47,171 in FY 2010-2011. This is the agency's number four priority. This 
position could continue to reduce the backlog of Reports of Conveyance filed, 
allowing engineers to focus on processing water rights applications for the State 
Engineer's final decision. The sixth option is to restore funding for an 
engineering technician III in the Elko Office at a cost of $64,963 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $65,658 in FY 2010-2011. This is the agency's number 
five priority. Responsibilities of this position include: inspecting mines in the 
Humboldt River Basin to ensure all conditions of permits are being met; 
conducting well-driller inspections for drilling activities in northeastern Nevada; 
providing public assistance; maintaining and servicing precipitation gauges; and 
conducting field investigations, water level measurements and crop inventories. 
The seventh option is to restore the IT professional in the IT Section in 
Carson City at a cost of $69,186 in FY 2009-2010 and $69,685 in 
FY 2010-2011. This is the agency's number six priority. This position would 
allow the Division to continue to provide online hydrologic data, pumpage and 
crop inventory reports; to scan images such as historic maps and technical 
reports; and to develop an online pumpage report system. The final option is to 
restore the staff associate engineer in the Las Vegas Office at a cost of 
$65,479 in FY 2009-2010 and $65,976 in FY 2010-2011. This is the agency's 
number seven priority. This position gathers and analyzes field data and assists 
in the management of monitoring programs for groundwater basins in eastern 
and southern Nevada. Restoration of this position would ensure ample 
engineering staff in southern Nevada to verify monitoring data for the various 
inter-basin projects in the vicinity. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
The Subcommittee should be aware of Assembly Bill (A.B.) 480 which would 
increase fees in the State Engineer's Office. I realize we cannot create an 
enterprise fund for the State Engineer's Office, but this bill will increase 
revenues to the General Fund. It will not generate $1.2 million, but it will 
generate close to $1 million. I know we cannot dictate these fees will go to the 
State Engineer's Office once they are in the General Fund. It is essential we 
maintain these 11 positions or we will lose ground. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 480: Makes various changes relating to fees collected by the 

State Engineer. (BDR 48-1161) 
 
Why is the staff associate engineer position in southern Nevada, dealing with 
Lincoln and White Pine Counties, so low on the reinstatement list? At this time, 
that is where most of the transfers and work are occurring. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB480.pdf�
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JASON KING, P.E. (Deputy State Engineer, State Engineer's Office, Division of 

Water Resources): 
It was difficult to rank these positions. As you probably know, we have a 
Las Vegas office with 11 staff members. There are two professional engineers 
in the Las Vegas office, along with two other engineers and one engineering 
technician, who have the ability of working in those basins you spoke of. 
Although this is where the large transfers are occurring, we have staff in that 
location to address those issues. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
How much of the backlog has been eliminated? What effect will the reduction 
of these 11.4 positions have on the Department's ability to continue to 
eliminate the backlog? 
 
MR. KING: 
Five years ago, our backlog of applications was 4,000; it is now below 2,000. 
In terms of Reports of Conveyance, we receive thousands a year. There is still a 
backlog, I do not know what the exact number is, but it has been reduced. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
Will you be able to maintain your current level with these reductions? 
 
MR. KING: 
We will see a gradual trend backwards: our backlog will increase. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN HOGAN: 
The Subcommittee needs to keep in mind the Governor recommends eliminating 
11.4 positions to achieve $630,844 in General Fund savings in the first year of 
the biennium. The restoration of seven positions will cost approximately 
$440,000. The timing of these cuts is unbelievable. We face continuing water 
shortages and climatic changes. The stresses and strains, both geologically and 
politically, will be significant. Concerns about water transfers might cause 
significant environmental problems. We rely on the State Engineer's Office to 
oversee the drilling and withdrawal of water and the transfer of water rights. 
This is an area in which prudent management dictates maintaining staff levels, if 
not increasing them, in recognition of the challenges over the next several 
years. I support restoration of these seven priority positions to the extent 
possible. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
I add my support to the restoration of at least the seven priority positions. 
Dismantling the Water Planning Division is unthinkable. 
Assemblyman Goicoechea, is there any danger the Governor will veto A.B. 480 
should it be passed? 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
We have not checked with the Governor. We assume he will probably veto the 
bill. I could support this add-back to this budget. We have to obtain some 
money from someplace. It is not an enterprise fund, but the users of the system 
will have to pay a little more. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
Perhaps we need to expedite that bill in both houses and let the Governor veto 
it so we can bring it back and override it. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
I will let you lay those plans. You are the majority. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
Can we keep this issue alive? I support restoring all 11.4 positions. At a 
minimum, however, the 7 positions on the priority list should be restored. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I agree. At the least, we should restore these seven positions and consider the 
other 4.4 at a later date. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN GOICOECHEA: 
Realistically, we are accepting the Department's recommendation they can live 
with the seven. Let us see if we can bring some money into the General Fund. 
I can agree as long as we can show we have a means to fund it, so we are not 
just adding back. We will be facing more and more difficult choices with fewer 
and fewer funds as we near the end of the Session. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Yes, we are already making difficult choices. 
 
SENATOR RHOADS: 
How many vacancies do you have? 
 
MR. KING: 
We have one vacancy. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
Senator Rhoads reminds me of the testimony we previously received which 
indicated that people were already leaving the NDWR and being transferred to 
other places in anticipation these positions would be cut. I am concerned. These 
are technical positions; we are losing the people we need to retain. Can you 
update the Subcommittee regarding your personnel issues? 
 
MR. BIAGGI: 
You are correct; there has been movement of individuals not only within the 
Division of Water Resources, but also within the Department of Conservation 
and Natural Resources. Opportunities within the Department were opening up 
and we were advising the staff that there was a potential for budget cuts but 
movement could be undertaken to these other programs. In almost all cases, the 
moves were increases in pay grade and step. It was a good opportunity for the 
individuals. If the positions were restored, they could come back if 
Water Resources is where they want to pursue a career. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN LESLIE: 
That is great if it is a better opportunity for the employees. Are you concerned 
about filling these positions if we restore them? Are there qualified people 
willing to work for these salaries? 
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MR. BIAGGI: 
One of the benefits of poor economic times is an aggressive workforce. In the 
past, we have had trouble securing the services of professional engineers. I do 
not think that will be a problem at this time. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will now discuss the Department of Transportation. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
Transportation Administration – Budget Page NDOT-3 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4660 
 
MARK KRMPOTIC (Senior Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative 

Counsel Bureau): 
The NDOT targets a minimum Highway Fund balance of $100 million which 
provides 1 month of operating expenses and 1.5 months of capital expenses. 
Based on the Governor's recommended budget, staff had calculated an ending 
Highway Fund balance of between $75 million and $80 million. The DMV, 
which collects the majority of the revenue for the Highway Fund, has updated 
its projections based on more recent activity. Based on this new information, for 
a three-year period beginning in FY 2008-2009, Highway Fund revenue is 
cumulatively projected to decrease $79 million below the Governor's 
recommended level. This would result, if no other actions are taken, in a 
negative Highway Fund balance at the end of the biennium. 
 
The NDOT has provided a scenario to staff reflecting potential adjustments to 
the capital construction category to maintain the Highway Fund balance at 
$100 million based on lower projected revenues. Based on the information 
provided, reductions of approximately $28 million in FY 2009-2010 and 
$42 million in FY 2010-2011 would need to be made to the capital construction 
category.  
 
One of the key assumptions in the NDOT's ability to reduce the capital 
construction category is the availability of general obligation bond authority in 
the amount of approximately $30 million. The Governor has not recommended 
additional general obligation bond authority be directed to the NDOT's 
construction program. The Director of the NDOT has been advised by the 
budget director they intend to make this money available to the NDOT for 
capital construction needs in the next biennium. The availability of bond 
authority is approximately the amount of General Funds reverted to the General 
Fund by the 25th Special Session of the Legislature that was originally approved 
under A.B. No. 544 of the 74th Session for the I-15 design build project. 
 
Staff is concerned that reductions to the capital construction capacity could 
jeopardize the NDOT's maintenance of effort (MOE) ability required to receive 
and spend funds totaling $201 million received through the federal ARRA. The 
NDOT has provided calculations regarding its understanding of these MOE 
requirements. Staff will be examining capital construction levels more closely 
with the NDOT to determine if reductions to the capital construction category 
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can be made without jeopardizing the State of Nevada's ability to maintain its 
effort with respect to receipt of federal ARRA funds. Depending on actions 
taken by the Subcommittee with respect to Highway Fund appropriations 
recommended in the budgets of the DMV and Public Safety, additional funding 
from reductions to recommended spending in those budgets may be available to 
offset projected reductions in the Highway Fund balance. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Can we direct the NDOT to stop construction to save the money? Is that within 
the purview of the Legislature? 
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The NDOT has some ability to defer projects for which they have not issued 
contracts. There may be issues with stopping construction on projects with 
outstanding contracts. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I am concerned about the NDOT running into their reserve and not being able to 
finish the work they have. Senate Bill (S.B.) 368, which proposes an increase in 
the special fuels tax, will be heard by the Taxation Committee on April 9, 2009. 
How much money would be raised by increasing the special fuels tax by each 
penny, and how much would that help the funds? Is the NDOT here?  
 
SENATE BILL 368: Imposes an additional licensing fee on certain heavyweight 

motor vehicles. (BDR 58-942) 
 
ROBERT D. CHISEL (Assistant Director of Administration, Nevada Department of 

Transportation): 
For each penny of additional tax, diesel raises about $4 million. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
How much do we need to make the reserve whole? 
 
MR. CHISEL: 
At the end of FY 2010-2011, the Highway Fund balance will be approximately 
$100 million. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Have you cut projects? 
 
R. SCOTT RAWLINS, P.E., CPM (Deputy Director and Chief Engineer, Nevada 

Department of Transportation): 
The NDOT is aggressively designing projects and getting them ready for funding 
when it becomes available. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
If we do not make changes, will we lose federal stimulus funds? 
 
MR. RAWLINS: 
At this point, we will not lose funds. We believe our MOE is adequate to receive 
the stimulus funds. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB368.pdf�
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SENATOR COFFIN: 
What if receipts drop? 
 
FELICIA DENNEY (Administrative Services Officer, Financial Management Division, 

Nevada Department of Transportation): 
The MOE calculations were prepared using February projections from the DMV, 
which were $15 million less than projected in March. There is a little bit of 
leeway but if receipts drop below those levels allocations within the program 
may have to be changed. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
How would you allocate your program when the Legislature is out of session? 
 
MR. RAWLINS: 
We keep close tabs on our construction projects and our program as we go 
forward and where the money will be allocated. We will ensure the ARRA funds 
will be used and the program will maintain the proper balance. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I think you are going to have to cut projects if the Legislature is out of session 
and receipts drop. 
 
MR. RAWLINS: 
To maintain that balance, yes, we will have to cut projects. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
What is the minimum amount we have to show in our MOE? 
 
MR. CHISEL: 
The federal guidelines were a little confusing. We worked with our federal 
partners and the U.S. Department of Transportation and calculated 
approximately $71 million as a MOE for State dollars. We are expecting to 
receive about $235 million in each year of the biennium in federal funding. The 
State would have to spend approximately $71 million above and beyond that to 
be eligible to receive additional stimulus funds. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
On what does the NDOT base the receipt of $30 million in general obligation 
bond authority? 
 
MR. CHISEL: 
During the 2007 Legislative Session, approximately $170 million in excess 
General Fund was allocated to the NDOT: $16 million went to the construction 
of State Route 160, the Blue Diamond Highway; and $154 million went to the 
I-15 design and build project. Since then, that General Fund allocation has been 
whittled down. The last time it was taken away, approximately $50 million was 
taken, the intent was to provide $30 million for a Capital Improvement 
Project (CIP) bond for the NDOT. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will hear this item at another time after we receive further information. 
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MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The NDOT budget will be one of the last budgets the Subcommittee will close, 
sometime in early May. That will allow staff to accumulate another month's 
worth of Highway Fund revenue activity and provide the Subcommittee a 
clearer indication of what reductions may be necessary, if any. During that time 
the Subcommittee will have acted on the DMV and Public Safety budgets, 
which are the other two user agencies of Highway Funds. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will now discuss the DMV. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
MOTOR VEHICLES 
 
DMV - Director's Office – Budget Page DMV-1 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4744 
 
SCOTT EDWARDS (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The first item for the Subcommittee's consideration concerning the DMV is the 
Governor's recommendation to revise funding sources, whereby certain 
authorized revenues will be replaced with direct Highway Fund appropriations. 
In addition, the Governor recommends a statutory amendment to the 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 408.235 to lower the agency's cap on Highway 
Funds available for administration from 22 percent to 20 percent while including 
Motor Vehicle Gasoline Tax revenue in the calculation of the cap. While this 
appears to be a 2-percent decline in the cap on administration, by effectively 
raising the cap on gasoline tax from 1 percent to 20 percent, it is actually a 
19-percent increase in those revenue proceeds.  
 
The revision in funding sources appears to be a result of the decline in revenues 
experienced by the DMV. At the time of the Governor's recommendations, the 
DMV was projected to exceed the existing cap by about $1 million in the first 
year and $2.1 million in the second year of the biennium. With the revisions to 
statute and the direct Highway Fund appropriations as proposed, that would 
change for FY 2009-2010 increasing the amount of available funds to the DMV 
and giving them more room under the new cap of 20 percent of about 
$15.3 million. During FY 2010-2011, the increase under the cap would be 
approximately $14.2 million. These increases are due to the DMV's ability to 
utilize gasoline tax proceeds. At the time the Executive Budget was created, 
gasoline tax revenues were estimated to be approximately $183.7 million in 
each year of the biennium. More recent revenue projections for the upcoming 
biennium have accelerated the decline projected in Highway Funds available not 
only for the NDOT's capital improvements, but also for administration expenses. 
Due to the continued decline in Highway Fund revenues, the DMV will exceed 
the 22-percent cap by approximately $10.7 million in the first year and 
$11.4 million in the second year of the biennium. That includes the Governor's 
recommendations to reduce Highway Funds by the 6-percent salary reductions, 
the suspension of merit pay and longevity pay, as well as reductions in 
retirement subsidies. Any restoration of those elements would increase the 
overage in terms of the projections to exceed the cap. 
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The DMV has recently reported potential areas for reducing Highway Funds to 
be included in the budget. Although the Governor recommends the elimination 
of 15 positions, there are an additional 115 vacant positions in the budget that 
represent an annual value of approximately $5.8 million. The elimination of 
these positions could help reduce the overage for the 22-percent cap. In 
addition, the DMV has recently reported some potential Highway Fund 
reductions in the license plate factory expenses due to reduced inflationary 
increases. These reductions total approximately $500,000 in each year of the 
biennium. The Real ID budget is recommending $1.5 million in Highway Funds. 
However, the DMV has a grant application with the federal government for 
funds that could offset that $1.5 million in Highway Funds by up to 
$1.1 million. Combining these three elements could potentially achieve 
reductions of $7 million each year. There may be other areas in which to reduce 
Highway Fund requirements in the upcoming biennium to bring the DMV down 
within the existing 22-percent cap. However, staying within the 22-percent cap 
as presently defined, and given the continuing decline of Highway Fund 
revenues, may result in service impacts in field offices which may increase wait 
times and have other operational effects. 
 
There are several options for consideration by the Subcommittee. The first is to 
approve the Governor's recommendations to amend NRS 408.235 which would 
include gasoline tax revenue in determining the total Highway Funds available to 
determine the DMV's cap, while lowering the cap from 22 percent to 
20 percent. This action would also raise the cap on gasoline tax from 1 percent 
to 20 percent. In addition, the Subcommittee's approval of this recommendation 
would replace certain authorized revenues that fund select DMV budget 
accounts with direct Highway Fund appropriations. The second option is not to 
approve the Governor's recommendation as described. If so, the Subcommittee 
may wish to direct staff to work with the DMV to reduce total Highway Fund 
appropriations recommended for the upcoming biennium to remain within the 
22-percent cap is it exists. The third option is to approve the actions just 
described in reviewing expenses for the upcoming biennium. To the extent the 
agency is unable to eliminate or reduce sufficient Highway Funds to remain 
within the existing 22-percent cap, the Subcommittee may also wish to have 
staff evaluate and recommend a temporary increase on the administrative cap 
from 22 percent for each year of the upcoming biennium only. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I do not support changing the cap. I understand the dilemma the DMV is in, but 
we must tighten our belts. I support Option 2 and working with staff to 
determine how the agency can get by with eliminating some of these vacant 
positions, as well as closing field offices on Mondays. After hearing the dilemma 
with the Highway Funds, we are going to have to try to live within our means. 
If worse comes to worst, I could consider a temporary increase in the cap, but I 
would like to remain within the existing cap. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I agree with Assemblywoman McClain. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I respectfully disagree with my colleagues. Making these agencies whole is 
easily within reach. At the February 17, 2009, budget hearing I asked questions 
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of the DMV about options to improve their revenue picture. We have the ability 
to change the fees for driver's licenses, for example. If we made changes in 
those fees, revenues for the DMV would increase, and they would not need 
Highway Fund appropriations. We charge $22 for a driver's license for four 
years. If driver's license fees are increased we could allocate some of those 
funds to the DMV. An increase of $9 would raise approximately $6 million each 
year, and $1.3 million or $1.4 million each year would go to the DMV. I do not 
want to close offices and inconvenience the public. This is an option we should 
consider. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
What are the current wait times at the DMV field offices? 
 
EDGAR J. ROBERTS (Director, Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles): 
Wait times vary among offices; at the Decatur office, the wait time is 
69 minutes; at the Galletti office, it is 22 minutes; at the Henderson office, it is 
60 minutes; at the Sahara office, it is 47 minutes; and at the West Flamingo 
office, it is currently 74 minutes. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I am not advocating closing offices. Has some of the business at the DMV 
decreased? 
 
MR. ROBERTS: 
Yes, we have had a decrease in new car sales associated business. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Please work with staff. I agree with Senator Coffin, this will not be decided 
today. If you can manage to get some creative funding I would support it. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Seeing no further questions or comments, we will ask the DMV to work with 
staff to find other options. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I would also like to look at staff's recommendation regarding the Real ID. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will now discuss the Real ID. 
 
DMV - Real ID – Budget Page DMV-6 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4746 
 
MR. EDWARDS: 
The Governor recommends Highway Funds totaling approximately $1.5 million 
over the upcoming biennium to implement Real ID. As previously reported by 
the DMV, they have submitted a grant application for an additional $4.9 million 
for the driver's license security grant program. That $4.9 million includes the 
$1.5 million recommended in the Executive Budget in addition to funds that 
would enhance the agency's ability to implement the Real ID Act in Nevada. The 
DMV states that expenses totaling $264,000 which are included in the 
Governor's recommendation are ineligible for federal funding. In addition, a 
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notification of award will not be received until October 2009. Any expenses 
incurred during the months of July, August, and September 2009 would be 
ineligible for grant funding as well. The agency has identified approximately 
$167,000 in those related costs. The total amount determined to be ineligible is 
approximately $431,000. There is a potential to reduce the funding 
recommended for this budget of $1.5 million by up to $1.1 million. Although 
there are $431,000 in ineligible expenses, the DMV requests $485,000 after 
the close of session to ensure it has adequate funding for the implementation of 
the Real ID Act until they receive the grant award notification, and to continue 
operations until they can come before the IFC to request authorization to accept 
the grant funds, or additional Highway Funds as needed.  
 
The Subcommittee has three options to consider. The first option is to approve 
the Real ID budget of approximately $1.5 million as recommended by the 
Governor. The second option is to approve the Real ID budget with Highway 
Funds of approximately $432,000, which is the amount determined to be 
ineligible for grant funding. Additionally, the Subcommittee may wish to approve 
Real ID grant authorizations of approximately $756,000 to allow the agency to 
incur grant eligible expenses upon notification of the award. The third option is 
not to approve the Real ID budget, thereby not approving the implementation of 
the Real ID Act in Nevada. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I understand that S.B. 52 has been re-referred to the Senate Finance 
Committee. 
 
SENATE BILL 52: Revises provisions relating to drivers’ licenses and 

identification cards to facilitate implementation of the federal Real ID Act 
of 2005. (BDR 43-391) 

 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I support Option 2. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I agree. 
 
We will now discuss the Office of the Military, Project ChalleNGe. 
 
SPECIAL PURPOSE AGENCIES 
 
MILITARY 
 
Military – Budget Page MILITARY-1 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3650 
 
E-325 Services at Level Closest to People – Page MILITARY-4 
 
BRIAN BURKE (Principal Deputy Fiscal Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative 

Counsel Bureau): 
Project ChalleNGe is a National Guard program for youth who have dropped out 
of high school. This program provides the youth with an opportunity to receive 
a military-style education. This program has historically sent 12 students each 
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class, for a total of 24 students a year, to the Project ChalleNGe program in 
Arizona. During the 2007 Session, the Governor recommended and the 
Legislature approved the creation of a Nevada ChalleNGe program. Due to 
budget reductions and the difficulty in obtaining a location, that program did not 
begin. The Governor now recommends a new Project ChalleNGe program 
sending students to the California programs in San Luis Obispo and 
Los Alamitos. The General Fund cost would be $389,007 in FY 2009-2010 and 
$680,000 in FY 2010-2011. These funds would enable the Guard to target a 
graduating class of 50 the first year and two classes of 50 the second year of 
the biennium. The General Fund cost per student is $6,800 each year. 
 
There are several options for the Subcommittee to consider. The first option is 
to approve the Governor's recommendation for the full complement of 
50 students in each class. The second option is to approve the restoration of 
the ChalleNGe program with a smaller complement of students. The third option 
is to deny the ChalleNGe program entirely. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
My experience working with school districts and students who have dropped 
out has taught me that students who drop out of school require one-on-one 
attention. Fifty students is not a lot, twelve is certainly not a lot, but we have 
to take these gains one at a time. I would support starting this program with 
California, but not with fifty students initially. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN HOGAN: 
I support the idea of the ChalleNGe program. Youth who have had difficulties 
adjusting and succeeding in their school efforts may be reached by the means 
the military uses to lead people to develop their skills. Given the budget 
situation, we may have to hold the level of participants down. It will give us an 
opportunity to gauge the success of the program, and we can expand 
participation when the budget situation becomes more amenable. I support 
Option 2. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I was against starting a Project ChalleNGe program in Nevada. I am glad we 
have found a program in California. Have we made any guarantees to California 
about the number of students we will send? 
 
MAJOR BRIAN THAYER (Deputy Counterdrug Coordinator, Nevada National Guard): 
We have begun a cooperative agreement with California that does not set a 
minimum or maximum number of students from Nevada. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Do they have any expectations regarding the number of students we will send? 
 
MAJOR THAYER: 
They know we are still getting approval for the process. They will accommodate 
whatever number of students we approve. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
This budget includes 50 the first year, and 100 the second year. Could we cut it 
in half? 
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MR. BURKE: 
I want to make sure I understand the numbers you are talking about. Do you 
mean 25 students the first year, and 50 the second year? Or are you suggesting 
we send 12 students for each class as we previously did with the Arizona 
program? 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
I am suggesting the latter. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN HOGAN: 
Would the class be made up of Nevada students exclusively, or would they be 
integrated with students from California and elsewhere? 
 
MAJOR THAYER: 
Each one of the sites in California sets a 150-student graduating class. Our 
12 students would be part of the larger class. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
It appears we are in agreement about Option 2. Are there any other questions? 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
Is there any way to get private businesses involved in sponsoring students? 
 
MAJOR THAYER: 
There are no restrictions regarding private donations to support Project 
ChalleNGe within each state. There is a national foundation of private donations 
to support the national program. There was a nonprofit organization in 
Las Vegas that raised money for scholarships and other support when we had a 
program in partnership with Arizona. That organization has dwindled over the 
last two years since Nevada has not had a program in place. 
 
CHAIR MCCLAIN: 
When the economy rebounds more people will be involved in philanthropy again. 
We should keep that in the back of our minds. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I think there is a great deal of interest in working with students who have 
dropped out of school. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN HOGAN: 
Once the program begins, it might be possible to interest some of the veteran's 
organizations. They tend to be energetic and interested in the next generation. I 
support this program and I hope it will be successful and garner public support. 
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CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
As there is no other business and no further testimony, this meeting is 
adjourned at 9:58 a.m. 
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